London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Health & Wellbeing Board
Agenda
Wednesday 29 June 2022 at 6.00 pm
Online
MEMBERSHIP
Councillor Ben Coleman (Chair) – Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Health and
Social Care
Vanessa Andreae - H&F Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice-Chair)
Dr James Cavanagh – H&F CCG, Chair
Carleen Duffy – Healthwatch H&F
Dr Nicola Lang - Director of Public Health, LBHF
Phillipa Johnson – Director, Integrated Care Partnership, and Director of Operations for
Central London Community Health Trust
Jacqui McShannon – Strategic Director of Children’s Services
Lisa Redfern - Strategic Director of Social Care, LBHF
Sue Roostan - Borough Director, H&F, North West London Collaborative CCGs
Councillor Alexandra Sanderson – Cabinet Member for Children and Education
Sue Spiller - Chief Executive Officer, SOBUS
Detective Inspector Luxan Thurairatnasingam - Met Police
Nominated Deputy Member
Councillor Natalia Perez, Chair, Health, Inclusion and Social Care Policy and
Accountability Committee
Helen Rowbottom, Chair of Children and Education Policy and
Accountability Committee
Nadia Taylor – Healthwatch, H&F
Reports on the open agenda are available on the Council’s website:
www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees
A live streaming of the meeting can be viewed here: https://youtu.be/CAN-siPCFEI

CONTACT OFFICER:

Bathsheba Mall
Committee Coordinator
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8753 5758
E-mail: bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk
Date Issued: 21 June 2022

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Health & Wellbeing Board
Agenda
Item
1.

Pages
APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR
For the Board to agree the appointment of Vice-Chair for the municipal
year 2022-23.

2.

NEW APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD
For the Board to note and welcome:
Councillor Alexandra Sanderson, Cabinet Member for Children and
Education
Natalia Perez, Chair of Health and Adult Social Care PAC (Nominated
Deputy)
Helen Rowbottom, Chair of Children and Education PAC (Nominated
Deputy)

3.

MINUTES AND ACTIONS
(a) To approve as an accurate record and the Chair to sign the
minutes of the meeting of the Health & Wellbeing Board held on



14 March 2022
16 March 2022 (in person, extra meeting)

(b) To note the outstanding actions.
4.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

5.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
If a Member of the Board, or any other member present in the meeting
has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, whether or not it
is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any other significant
interest which they consider should be declared in the public interest,
they should declare the existence and, unless it is a sensitive interest as
defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature of the interest at the
commencement of the consideration of that item or as soon as it
becomes apparent.
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in
attendance and speak, any Member with a disclosable pecuniary
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give
evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Member must then
withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is discussed
and any vote taken.

4 - 15

Where members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and
speak, then the Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest should
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration.
Members who have declared other significant interests should also
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.
Members are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Audit, Pensions
and Standards Committee.
6.

BOROUGH UPDATE ON MONKEY POX

Verbal

The Board to receive a verbal update on the Monkey Pox outbreak.
7.

UPDATE ON THE JOINT STRATEGIC NEEDS ASSESSMENT FOR
LBHF

16 - 17

This paper updates the Health and Wellbeing Board on the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment in LBHF. The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
(JSNA) is a statutory requirement, and it is the way the Council is required
assess the current and future health needs of the local population.

8.

PRODUCTION OF THE HAMMERSMITH AND FULHAM
PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT

18 - 23

The Board to consider an update on the H&F Pharmaceutical Needs
Assessment (PNA). This evaluates the key health needs of the borough
population and how these are being met by pharmaceutical services or
could be improved. The completed PNA will then inform NHS England’s
views on local provision.

9.

WORK PROGRAMME
The Board to consider potential items and suggest topics to be included
in the future.

10.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Better Care Fund – Formal board sign off.

11.

DATES OF NEXT MEETING
The Board is asked to note the date of the next meeting on
21 September 2022.

24 - 39

Agenda Item 3
.

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Health & Wellbeing
Board
Draft Minutes
Monday 14 March 2022
PRESENT
Board Members:
Councillor Ben Coleman (Chair)
Dr Nicola Lang - Director of Public Health, LBHF
Phillipa Johnson – Director, Integrated Care Partnership, and Director of
Operations for Central London Community Health Trust
Lisa Redfern - Strategic Director of Social Care, LBHF
Sue Roostan - Borough Director, H&F, North West London Collaborative CCGs
Sue Spiller - Chief Executive Officer, SOBUS
Detective Inspector Luxan Thurairatnasingam - Met Police
Nominated Deputies Councillors:
Councillor Patricia Quigley - Assistant to the Cabinet Member Health and Adult
Social Care, LBHF
Nadia Taylor - Nominated Deputy Healthwatch, H&F
Officers and guests:
Nicola Ashton, Strategic Health Commissioner, H&F
Senal Arkut, Assistant Director for Public Health and Social Care Commissioning,
H&F
Charlotte Bailey, Chief People Officer, North West London Collaborative of CCGs
Jazz Browne, Chief Executive, Nubian Life Resource Centre
Dr Naomi Elster, Head of Research and Communications, Prostate Cancer
Research
June Farquharson, Assistant Director for Health Inequalities and Population Health,
North West London Collaborative of CCGs
Jim Grealy, HAFSON
Rory Hegarty, Director of Communications and Engagement, Integrated Care
Partnership
Merrill Hammer, HAFSON
Dr Christopher Hilton, West London NHS Trust
Linda Jackson, Director, Strategy Innovation Community Health and Wellbeing,
Social Care, H&F
Ashlee Mulimba, Health Psychologist, Healthy Dialogues Ltd.
Roy Morgan, Head of Prevention and Wellbeing for Adult Social Care and Public
Health, H&F
Dr Habib Naqvi, Director of the NHS Race and Health Observatory
Yvonne Okiyo, Strategic Lead for Ethnicity, Diversity and Inclusion, Children’s
Services
Bevan Powell, Deputy Chair, Nubian Life Resource Centre
Sharon Tomlin, Resident Community Organiser, SOBUS
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 4

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies from the following board members: Vanessa Andreae, Councillor
Larry Culhane, Dr Nicola Lang, Lisa Redfern, Councillor Lucy Richardson,
Sue Roostan and Glendine Shepherd.

2.

ROLL CALL AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.

3.

MINUTES AND ACTIONS
It was noted that Jacqui McShannon had attended the previous meeting. Sue
Roostan reported that paragraph 5.4, should state “non-essential CCG work”,
that in paragraph 5.14, “intuitive” should be replaced by “initial” and that two
references to “consultation” in paragraph 6.7 should state “engagement”.
RESOLVED
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 December 2021 were noted
as an accurate record, as amended.

4.

TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES

4.1

Councillor Ben Coleman introduced the term “health inequality” within the
context of people who receive poorer health treatment because of biased,
racist perceptions and behaviours. The recently published report “Ethnic
Inequalities in Healthcare: A Rapid Evidence Review” (February 2022)
produced by the NHS Race and Health Observatory, and led by its director,
Dr Habib Naqvi, evidenced stark and overwhelming racial inequity within the
UK’s healthcare system. The NHS Race and Health Observatory had
engaged nationally which was a positive step. Locally, H&F had recently
received a significant funding award to look at the root causes of health
inequalities within the borough. Linda Jackson prefaced the discussion by
describing the borough’s collaborative approach with Dr Bob Klaber,
Consultant in Paediatrics, Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust. A
reluctance to come forward for vaccination in some ethnic communities
stemmed from a lack of trust. The Council was working with partners
including the NHS and police to address this.

4.2

Dr Naqvi’s provided an overview of the work of the Observatory, which was
set up to be a semi-independent unit scrutinising the NHS and UK Healthcare
system. Details were provided on the Observatory’s form and function.
Observatory’s work focused on 5 main areas. These were: maternal and
foetal mortality in ethnic communities; disproportionate mental health illness
in ethnic communities and access to mental healthcare; empowering
vulnerable communities; and digital health. Councillor Ben Coleman
commended Dr Naqvi for his work and an insightful, that to achieve
meaningful and sustained progress it was necessary to get “comfortable with
the uncomfortable in order meet the needs of diverse communities”.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 5

A Zoom recording of Dr Naqvi’s complete presentation from can be accessed
at H&F Health & Wellbeing Board | 14 March 2022 - YouTube, 13:42.
4.3

Bevin Powell referenced historic reports which highlighted the impact of
health inequalities and cultural misrepresentation in the NHS which impeded
building trust and confidence. He asked how improved cultural competencies
could help address institutional and structural racism. Assistive technology
and digital innovations were helpful, but this would not necessarily avoid
cultural bias due to an absence of systemic planning. Ensuring cultural
competency at every level from commissioning to service delivery required
that the right questions be asked throughout.

4.4

Dr Naqvi agreed and outlined a piece of work that the Observatory was
currently engaged in that identified new innovations in the NHS to ensure that
an equalities impact assessment was factored in at the start. The review of
racial bias in pulse oximeters illustrated that the design of the device did not
recognise differences in skin pigmentation and needed to be addressed. This
led to a decision to have a wider review of medical devices. Dr Naqvi focused
on leadership and how dealing with this challenge should not be a burden for
those most affected by it. There should be an equal burden of commitment
for everyone and if it worked for the most vulnerable in the community then it
would work for the majority. Councillor Coleman endorsed the response and
recognised the importance and challenge of joint working.

4.5

Sue Spiller asked if there were any examples that Dr Naqvi could offer of
where there was trust, observing that decades of mistrust could not be
resolved overnight. Dr Naqvi described his experience of being vaccinated at
the Malcom X centre in Bristol which had been led and hosted by the local
community and was a good example of building trust through partnership,
community working with the local authority. However, building trust was a
complex issue and he agreed that this kind of movement from entrenched
values would be slow. Many people who experienced racism saw little value
in numerous reports without real change, so this required persistence and
patience.

4.6

Dr Naomi Elster agreed and commented that there was a sense that patients
were tired of initiatives being directed at them and questioning. She cited
several examples including: Muslim women and their reluctance to accept
hormone therapy for breast cancer and who repeatedly reported lower levels
of empathy from NHS staff than white women with the same reservations;
how the pain threshold for Black women was perceived by NHS staff, and the
reason why they fared much worse in childbirth; and also, Black men, who
had a greater likelihood of being diagnosed with prostate cancer at a younger
age, however, confused messaging from GPs advised waiting. Dr Naqvi felt
that this was not simply a moral issue but that there were cost and efficiency
benefits, as well as critically, the potential for saving lives if there was a
greater focus on education. He agreed with Dr Elster’s point regarding pain
management, illustrating this with the example of endometriosis and skewed
preconceptions about a person’s threshold for pain.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 6

4.7

June Farquharson highlighted a perspective from the North West London
Integrated Care System (ICS). Issues such as the death of George Floyd
offered a platform to explore the mistrust felt by Black communities. There
was a commitment to start a different conversation and to rebuild trust,
beginning with health inequalities, identifying barriers to care and to improve
outcomes. The ICS was currently leading on two initiatives that built on the
work of the Observatory, with a commitment to coproduce a five-year
inequalities’ framework that would identify health inequalities by collaborating
strategically with communities. Health inequalities had been identified across
the North West London area and there was a need to change the narrative
about how the issue of mistrust could be addressed, reaching beyond the
data. The ICS aimed to be responsive to messages from the Black
community and planned to develop a steering group, jointly co-chaired by a
local authority representative and a senior member of the health service. The
group would have a remit to contextualise local conversations within a
strategic framework so Black communities would be listened to, and to
include this within the group’s terms of reference.

4.8

Councillor Coleman welcomed the commitment from the ICS. It was clear
that structural racism was a barrier and required greater prominence. Rory
Hegarty endorsed the comments and added that the launch of the inequality’s
framework would ensure that ongoing dialogue with communities was
encouraged and supported. There was a strong agreement that there should
be partisan working across health and social care, and an understanding of
how to collaborate with communities and grass roots organisations that was
both inclusive and foster challenging conversations. Charlotte Bailey
referenced the issue of leadership and culture within organisations, and
discrimination which hindered workforce career progression. There was a
recognition that the workforce interfaced with patients, but it was leadership
that made decisions about resources. Across NWL the intention was to use
workforce ratio quality standard data to inform leadership career programs
and inclusive recruitment, using ethnically diverse staff voices and
experiences to create movement and change through positive action
interventions.

4.9

Linda Jackson volunteered the NWL ICS to work with the Observatory and
outlined specific interests in mental health and young people. Dr Naqvi
welcomed the offer to be a potential pilot site and although there was no
specific work on these areas a maternal health group was exploring mental
health and young people. There was potential work that the Observatory
might lead on around the ethnicity pay gap.

4.10

Phillipa Johnson welcomed the discussion and focused on the borough-based
partnership as a new way of working to deliver local integrated care. The
CCG aimed to build a deeper understanding of population and community
needs, with a commitment to coproduction. Councillor Coleman added that
there had been discussions as to the structural question and areas of
responsibility at either ICS or borough levels. Sharing best practice was a
positive but a top-down policy setting could be one directional. The potential
of achieving improved equalities outcomes across all communities could be

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 7

realised if there was capacity for the ICS to work with councils. Engagement
had to be community led as people perceived themselves by locality rather
than regionally.
4.11

DI Thurairatnasingam commented on how the police engaged with local
communities by trying to build trust. One barrier to address was unconscious
bias and procedural fairness in technology. There were ethnically diverse
health professionals within the NHS holding prominent positions but there
was a lack of cohesion with doctors not rooted within the communities. Their
experience within the health service would be invaluable in helping to reengage with communities. Public confidence in public services had dropped
significantly despite equitable policies and procedural fairness.

4.12

Jim Grealy found it shocking that issue of structural racism, when he first
entered the teaching profession fifty years previously, remained. The NHS
had been slow to recognise that structural racism was a barrier and that the
approach would be better framed as “earning” rather than “building” trust.
Many communities had stepped back from the NHS because of their negative
experiences. He stated NWL had been poor at listening to local people and
involving their voices and views in local decision-making and queried whether
communities would be listened to as an outcome of the five-year strategy and
that for this to happen communities would need to be involved at the outset.
June Farquharson responded that the plan was a framework and offered a
starting point to facilitate dialogue with communities.

4.13

Councillor Coleman thanked Dr Naqvi for his attendance and contribution and
commended the use of the phrase “trust is truth told consistently over time”
and how this manifested over time was part of the challenge.

4.14

Roy Morgan introduced local plans and outlined that health inequalities had
been highlighted by the disproportionate number Black minority ethnic
residents who had been reluctant to accept vaccination, because of a lack of
trust and confidence in the healthcare system based on their lived
experiences. The salient parts of the report were highlighted. It was noted
The Building Trust program was aimed at sceptical communities and involved
local community organisations which had begun to explore how to best
engage with local communities. A separate workstream would also explore
the removal of barriers to vaccine take up within black ethnic groups. Linda
Jackson expanded on the role of the steering group which would recruit local,
H&F community champions who could share their lived experiences of health
care provision, working closely with the ICS as experiences differed between
boroughs. Merril Hammer welcomed the comments and observed that the
work done by Sir Michael Marmot on the social dynamics of health
inequalities had not been referenced.

4.15

Dr Elster felt encouraged by the references to workforce issues as this was
regarded as integral to the problem, as highlighted during Dr Naqvi’s
presentation. Prostate Cancer Research UK funded 3% of prostate cancer
research in 2017, which had increased under her leadership to 14%. In terms
of workforce there was a focus on recruiting school age role models but
nothing to address the fact that many women and those from ethnic

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 8

minorities, were leaving the workforce. This linked to the issue of mistrust and
how this fostered misrepresentation which often apportions blame to the
patient for raising the initial concern with a health professional. She asked
the rhetorical question ‘how could mistrust could be dealt with in a way that
was constructive without creating a cycle of blame’.
4.16

Bevan Powel focused on the importance of engaging and listening to the
community and translating this into policy and action. He asked if there was
any work being undertaken in evaluating technical competencies of health
practitioners to make these more robust. Rory Hegarty responded that local
authorities were working collectively with the NHS in north east London to
address competency standards for practitioners. The key point was that this
was the beginning of a conversation highlighting inequalities and what this
meant for delivering health care services, but this was not autonomous and
needed to be undertaken in partnership with other organisations and
communities.

4.17

Sue Roostan felt that the work could be linked intrinsically with the borough
based partnership. In terms of vaccination, it was important to not replicate
the same set of difficulties that led to mistrust. This was an opportunity to
place equalities at the heart of policy and decision-making around
coproduction. Councillor Coleman suggested that councils, the NHS and the
third sector could find a way to work collaboratively together on structural
racism, in genuinely constructive way. Charlotte Bailey commented that a
unifying factor was to identify and articulate jointly values and principles such
as being inclusive, kind, safe and compassionate, underpinned by an
assurance about what this would mean.

4.18

Jim Grealy welcomed the insights offered by NHS colleagues but felt that
there was a need to mitigate against a “top down” approach when working at
speed, and at a local level within the Integrated Care Partnership. There was
a danger that those patients who have experienced racial bias, would be
invited to share their experiences to drive future policy change but that this
would not necessarily affect immediate change for them. Racist behaviour
could not be addressed without having a means to change practice. He
suggested the formation of a standing committee which could offer a platform
for asking question and getting answers with great frequency. Sue Spiller
concurred with an earlier point about having a set of standards that all
organisations could sign up to, but it was the behaviour of some individual
practitioners that needed to be addressed. External and independent scrutiny
of these practices and processes offered a way of holding organisations to
account and challenge practitioners who might be dismissive.

4.19

Dr Elster recounted her experience of working on maternal mortality in
Guatemala, in 2019 where most women who died during pregnancy were
from the indigenous population. One successful initiative was to employ
trained Mayan midwives whose practice was rooted in spirituality and
inherited knowledge who were also given training in western midwifery. In
another, UK example an initiative that increased the uptake of cervical
screening in Muslim women was an education program delivered jointly by
female medics and female religious scholars who provided an Islamic faith

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 9

perspective on cancer screening. Both were good examples of respectful
partnership working. Dr Elster welcomed news that the council would be
working with community champions but cautioned that they should be fully
supported to avoid any potential community backlash.
4.20

Yvonne Okiyo commented that an adversarial approach would not be helpful
as a starting point. A level playing field was being sought but while this
should acknowledge that structural racism exists, the response to undo this
collaboratively should be humble, doing things with communities rather than
too them. Communities would need to be supported to engage, with safe
spaces to so that they can share experiences and be listened to. This was a
message to those who were yet to be converted to listen, act and feedback.
There were many organisations that had been doing this work, building trust
but the conversation needed to be community led. Rory Hegarty agreed that
this should be led by “trusted community organisations” informed by the
council or NHS but not led by them.

4.21

Councillor Coleman referenced the vaccine equity workshops (organised by
Imperial College Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust) and focused on the
delivery of services which extended beyond the implementation of policies to
address bias. This approach embodied a collaborative approach that pooled
the best ideas and concepts to deliver something that could be uniquely
inclusive without being prescriptive. He suggested that this could be done by
for example, quarterly meetings between the north west London.

4.22

Sharon Tomlin supported the need to create a safe space for residents and
stakeholder organisations to nurture conversations, supported within a
structured framework by local councils. The phrase “poorly reached”
resonated as they were already disadvantaged but that did not mean that
they could not offer rich insights, which could inform policy change at a higher
level. She also endorsed the advice from Dr Elster regarding support for
community champions and Bevan Powell’s comments on unconscious bias in
relation to practitioner competency. She also cautioned that facilitating
dialogue without leading to change would be a significant disappointment.

4.23

On a final note, June Farquharson agreed with previous speakers she would
like the community to invite the NHS to have a conversation at when they
were ready and to have this in a safe space. Trust would be possible when
the community could see their voices reflected in policy and practical changes
to create equitable healthcare. Councillor Coleman endorsed this point and
added that irrespective of whether it was at a local or regional level, change
should be resident led, supported by the NHS, administratively and clinically.
RESOLVED
That the comments and discussion generated was noted.

5.

PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT

5.1

Nicola Ashton outlined the requirements of the Pharmaceutical Needs
Assessment (PNA) and how the Board would have to deliver this. Required

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 10

every three years, an extended grace period of 6 months had been permitted
and the PNA would be required by October 2022. Health Dialogues Limited
was the appointed provider that would help support and deliver the PNA
process. With reference to the slide deck Ashlee Mulimba explained that the
PNA captured local views and assessed the current pharmacy provision to
see if this met existing local needs. This was achieved through a process of
engagement, communication using tools such as social print mediums to
channel the views of seldom heard voices. This ensured that the views of
those furthest from decision making such as addicts, the homeless, sex
workers, Black and Asian Minority Ethnic groups were included. The intention
was to complete stakeholder engagement by the end of March 2022, using a
broad approach with multiple channels to generate wide ranging
perspectives. Dr Lang clarified that consultation, and a survey would be
conducted over the summer period. The suggestion to include organisations
such as Nubian Life as part of the engagement was welcomed.
5.2

Councillor Coleman commented that given the earlier discussions around
minority ethnic groups that were “poorly reached”, pharmacies had a critical
role to engage and meet the needs of these communities. Nicola Ashton
reported that previous surveys had indicated that there had been minor
variation in the level of use except in the timing of access. Bevan Powell
enquired about what collective measures were being taken to work with grass
roots communities.
Dr Lang confirmed that engagement would be
undertaken through local faith forums in the borough. She was keen to
ensure that those without a voice should be included, together with data and
feedback obtained from other co-produced sessions.
Yvonne Okiyo
recommended that an equalities impact assessment be undertaken to ensure
that there was range of suitable methods to facilitate consultation with
different communities of interest. It would also assist consultation with groups
with protected characteristics or those most likely to be impacted.
RESOLVED
That Health and Wellbeing Board commented on and noted the statutory
requirement to develop and publish an updated Pharmaceutical Needs
Assessment (PNA) by October 2022.

6.

COVID-19 UPDATE

6.1

Dr Niki Lang reported that Covid rates were rising and that the Secretary of
State for Health had mentioned that our local rate was 550 per 100,000
population, and that in H&F there had been 40 cases reported in the previous
7 days. There had been a London level discussion about what could have
caused this, but it was likely to be because of increased social interaction and
low false testing rates, given that people had begun testing again. The BA2
variant of Omicron was found to be more easily spread compared to the
original Omicron variant, wanning vaccine immunity and reduced mitigation
measures with fewer people distancing or wearing face masks.

6.2

Dr Lang also reported that they were supporting local service providers with
advice regarding the most recently implemented changes issued on 24

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 11

February 2022. Sue Roostan confirmed that a spring booster vaccination
plan was about to be implemented and delivered through community
pharmacies with some pop up. It was unlikely that large, primary care
network hubs would be used although this might change depending on the
view of the Joint Committee for Vaccination and Immunisation. Given the
40% increase in the number of cases Sue Roostan confirmed that
hospitalisations were low in number, both in terms of intake and the intensive
care units.
6.3

Jacqui Mc Shannon reported that schools continued to implement the advice
of the Director of Public Health in terms of testing provision for children and
staff in vulnerable settings, including the guidance on self-isolation. Dr Lang
confirmed that refreshed guidance had been issued to schools and the
requirement for schools to test twice weekly had been removed. The BA2
variant was a concern and schools had been supported in continuing to follow
the advice. Commenting on the possibility that lateral flow test kits would be
charged for in future, Dr Lang acknowledged that this was a concern as it
might inhibit testing. There was a consensus that contrary to the government
view, Covid was very much present.
RESOLVED
That the verbal report was noted.

7.

WORK PROGRAMME
To be followed up.

8.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
None.

9.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Wednesday, 29 June 2022.

Meeting started: 6pm
Meeting ended: 8.31pm

Chair

Contact officer:

Bathsheba Mall
Committee Co-ordinator
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8753 5758
E-mail: bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 12

.

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Health & Wellbeing
Board
Draft Minutes
Wednesday 16 March 2022

PRESENT
Board Members:
Councillor Ben Coleman (Chair) – Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care
Councillor Larry Culhane - Cabinet Member for Children and Education
Carleen Duffy – Healthwatch H&F Representative
Detective Inspector Luxan Thurairatnasingam - Met Police
Glendine Shepherd – Assistant Director Housing Management
Nominated Deputies and Councillors:
Linda Jackson, Director, Strategy Innovation Community Health and Wellbeing,
Social Care, H&F – Nominated Deputy for Lisa Redfern, Strategic Director of Social
Care
Nadia Taylor - Nominated Deputy Healthwatch, H&F
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Dr Nicola Lang - Director of Public Health, LBHF
Phillipa Johnson – Director, Integrated Care Partnership, and Director of
Operations for Central London Community Health Trust
Lisa Redfern - Strategic Director of Social Care, LBHF
Sue Roostan - Borough Director, H&F, North West London Collaborative CCGs
Sue Spiller - Chief Executive Officer, SOBUS

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.

3.

BETTER CARE FUND
Linda Jackson presented the Better Care Fund report which set out the
proposal for the London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham (H&F) and the
H&F Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). This would form part of the
submission to NHSEI in November 2021. The report provided details of the
expected expenditure, learnings from covid, inequalities, improving patient
centred care, with the efficient use of resources, while being ruthless. It also
continued the discharge to assess work which would allow residents to be
better supported within their own homes with adaptations and assistive
technology, rather than in hospital.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 13

The importance of timely discharges and adapted support at home and
through the community was discussed. This was critical in terms of
alleviating pressure on the NHS however there was a significant impact on
the provision of social care, which needed to be acknowledged, properly
valued and resourced.
DI Luxan Thurairatnasingam commented on the needs of vulnerable, elderly
residents with dementia. A large proportion of missing people could be
included in this group giving rise to safeguarding issues around mental health
capacity. Most people picked up by the police were usually undiagnosed.
ACTION: To explore the possibility of extending Careline as pilot project
to address the issue of vulnerable missing people

RESOLVED
1. That the Chair, on behalf of the Health & Wellbeing Board, agreed the
planned total expenditure and the proposed schemes for 2021-22.
2. That the Health and Wellbeing Board receive an end of year report
outlining the outcomes of each scheme and the difference it has made
for residents of H&F.
4.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Nadia Taylor raised an issue regarding the rescheduling of hospital
appointments at Imperial College Healthcare NHS Trust and the changing of
GP prescribed medication by pharmacists that were based in GP surgeries,
with branded medication being substitute for generic versions.
ACTION: Councillor Ben Coleman to raise with Imperial CEO

5.

DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS
29 June 2022.
Meeting started: 4.40pm
Meeting ended: 5.10pm

Chair

Contact officer:

Bathsheba Mall
Committee Co-ordinator
Governance and Scrutiny
: 020 8753 5758
E-mail: bathsheba.mall@lbhf.gov.uk

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 14

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 15

Agenda Item 7

Health and Wellbeing Board LBHF
Paper: Update on the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for LBHF
Authors: Dr Nicola Lang (DPH) and Duncan Smith (Head of Business Intelligence)
Date: 29 June 2022
Summary
This paper updates the Health and Wellbeing Board on the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment in LBHF. The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) is a statutory
requirement and it’s the way the Council is required assess the current and future
health needs of the local population. Producing an up to date JSNA is one of the
statutory functions of the Director of Public Health in a local authority.
Type of paper: for information only
Background
Assessing the needs of the population involves characterising health needs and
identifying inequalities in order to inform and influence commissioning and plans. The
JSNA is used by partners, voluntary and community sector and the NHS to gauge
population needs and whether services locally meet those needs.
Introduction
The traditional approach within many local authorities has been to create a single long
JSNA document which is produced every three years. This tends to be less about
influencing decision making and more about ticking a box, and parts of the JSNA may
quickly become dated. The last JSNA webpage Public health | LBHF was limited in
scope, and included a number of reports spanning service provision, and other
documents unrelated to the JSNA.
The new JSNA will comprise different analytical items including factsheets, needs
assessments, data profiles, area profiles, demographic reports, performance
monitoring, dashboards and infographics. It will be refreshed yearly and ‘owned’ by a
number of council directorates and partners, given that the business intelligence
function is integrated.The web team will publish the page imminently, with the following
layout.

1
Page 16

If any Statutory Accountabilities Board members wish to suggest further factsheets,
please contact the BI team using this link BI Work Request App.

2
Page 17

June 29, 2022
HWB update

Agenda Item 8

Page 18

Production of the
Hammersmith and
Fulham
Pharmaceutical Needs
Assessment

What is the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment?

Page 19

A Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) looks at key health needs of
the local population and how those needs are being fulfilled or could be
fulfilled by pharmaceutical services in different parts of the borough.
The PNA is used by NHS England and local commissioners for informing
decisions on applications for new pharmacies, changes in premises for
existing pharmacies and changing services of existing pharmacies.

2

Public and contractor engagement - 3rd November until 15th May 2022

Page 20

212 respondents:
• 13% Black, Asian and Minority
Ethnic Communities (13% preferred
not to say)
• 58% over 65 years old
• 33% working full or part-time
• 18% have a disability

Homeless Health Service
Housing leads
White City Foodbank Hub
Nourish Hub
Urban Partnership
Peabody Maternity Champions
Young Hammersmith and Fulham
Age UK
Carer's Network
Care home leads
Sexual Health & Substance Misuse services
Violence Against Women group (VAWG)
Ethnic Minority Community Leads
Nubian Life
Hammersmith & Fulham volunteer centre
Sobus
Hammersmith & Fulham VCS
Hammersmith & Fulham Healthwatch
North West London CCG
Hammersmith & Fulham Engagement Officers

Overall, people are happy with the services they received. Most take 20 minutes or less to reach their
pharmacy and most use the pharmacy within normal working hours.

Contractor engagement
• 35/41 community pharmacies responded (85%) – which is good

Pharmacies accessible to Hammersmith and Fulham residents

Page 21

In assessing the provision of
essential services against the
needs of the population, the
steering group considered
access (distance, travel time
and opening hours) as the most
important factor in determining
the extent to which the current
provision of essential services
meets the needs of the
population.
This map presents
pharmacies accessible to
Hammersmith and Fulham
residents and their 1-mile
buffer zone.

Pharmacies in the wider health system
Need to note:
The pivotal role that pharmacies played in the pandemic
a) Need for larger spaces? If layout of their premises, for example, needing enough space to deliver
vaccines;
Page 22

b) Future planning: how can we incorporate more pharmacies in health delivery e.g. around flu
vaccinations, health advice and information;
c) Ensuring we consider need for pharmacies in planning (new housing developments);
d) Pharmacies playing a wider role as key stakeholders;
e) They are very accessible and key to H&WB and reducing health inequalities.

What’s happening next, and how you can get involved
60 day-consultation to statutory stakeholders – 1st July to 31st August 2022
Finalised PNA draft goes to HWB
- 7th September 2022
Final presentation to HWB
- 21st September 2022
Page 23

Agenda Item 10
Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template
1. Guidance
Overview

The Better Care Fund (BCF) reporting requirements are set out in the BCF Planning
Requirements document for 2021-22, which supports the aims of the BCF Policy
Framework and the BCF programme; jointly led and developed by the national partners
Department of Health (DHSC), Department for Levelling Up, Hosusing and Communities,
The key purposes of BCF reporting are:
1) To confirm the status of continued compliance against the requirements of the fund
2) To confirm actual income and expenditure in BCF plans at the end of the financial year
3) To provide information from local areas on challenges, achievements and support needs
in progressing the delivery of BCF plans
4) To enable the use of this information for national partners to inform future direction and
for local areas to inform improvements
BCF quarterly reporting is likely to be used by local areas, alongside any other information
to help inform HWBs on progress on integration and the BCF. It is also intended to inform
BCF national partners as well as those responsible for delivering the BCF plans at a local
level (including clinical commissioning groups, local authorities and service providers) for
BCF quarterly reports submitted by local areas are required to be signed off by HWBs as
the accountable governance body for the BCF locally and these reports are therefore part of
The BCF quarterly reports in aggregated form will be shared with local areas prior to
publication in order to support the aforementioned purposes of BCF reporting. In relation to
this, the BCF Team will make the aggregated BCF quarterly reporting information in entirety
available to local areas in a closed forum on the Better Care Exchange (BCEx) prior to

Note on entering information into this template

Throughout the template, cells which are open for input have a yellow background and
those that are pre-populated have a grey background, as below:
Data needs inputting in the cell
Pre-populated cells

Note on viewing the sheets optimally

To more optimally view each of the sheets and in particular the drop down lists clearly on
screen, please change the zoom level between 90% - 100%. Most drop downs are also
available to view as lists within the relevant sheet or in the guidance tab for readability if
The details of each sheet within the template are outlined below.

Checklist ( 2. Cover )

1. This section helps identify the sheets that have not been completed. All fields that appear
as incomplete should be complete before sending to the BCF Team.

Page 24

2. The checker column, which can be found on the individual sheets, updates automatically
as questions are completed. It will appear 'Red' and contain the word 'No' if the information
has not been completed. Once completed the checker column will change to 'Green' and
3. The 'sheet completed' cell will update when all 'checker' values for the sheet are green con
4. Once the checker column contains all cells marked 'Yes' the 'Incomplete Template' cell (be
5. Please ensure that all boxes on the checklist are green before submission.

2. Cover

1. The cover sheet provides essential information on the area for which the template is being
2. Question completion tracks the number of questions that have been completed; when all
the questions in each section of the template have been completed the cell will turn green.
Only when all cells are green should the template be sent to:
england.bettercaresupport@nhs.net

3. Please note that in line with fair processing of personal data we request email addresses
for individuals completing the reporting template in order to communicate with and resolve
any issues arising during the reporting cycle. We remove these addresses from the supplied

3. National Conditions

This section requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to confirm whether the four national
conditions detailed in the Better Care Fund planning requirements for 2021-22 (link below)
continue to be met through the delivery of your plan. Please confirm as at the time of
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/better-care-fund-planning-requirements-2021-22/
This sheet sets out the four conditions and requires the Health & Wellbeing Board to
confirm 'Yes' or 'No' that these continue to be met. Should 'No' be selected, please provide
an explanation as to why the condition was not met within the quarter and how this is being
addressed. Please note that where a National Condition is not being met, the HWB is
In summary, the four national conditions are as below:
National condition 1: Plans to be jointly agreed
National condition 2: NHS contribution to adult social care is maintained in line with the uplift
National condition 3: Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out-of-hospital services
National condition 4: Plan for improving outcomes for people being discharged from hospital

4. Metrics

The BCF plan includes the following metrics: Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic
ambulatory care sensitive conditions, Proportion of hospital stays that are 14 days or over,
Proportion of hospital stays that are 14 days or over, Proportion of discharges to a person's
usual place of residence, Residential Admissions and Reablement. Plans for these metrics
This section captures a confidence assessment on achieving the plans for each of the BCF
A brief commentary is requested for each metric outlining the challenges faced in achieving
the metric plans, any support needs and successes that have been achieved.
The BCF Team publish data from the Secondary Uses Service (SUS) dataset for Long
length of stay (14 and 21 days) and Dischaege to usual place of residence at a local
authority level to assist systems in understanding performance at local authority level.
The metris worksheet seeks a best estimate of confidence on progress against the
achievement of BCF metric plans and the related narrative information and it is advised
- In making the confidence assessment on progress, please utilise the available published
metric data (which should be typically available for 2 of the 3 months) in conjunction with the
interim/proxy metric information for the third month (which is eventually the source of the

Page 25

- In providing the narrative on Challenges and Support needs, and Achievements, most
areas have a sufficiently good perspective on these themes by the end of the quarter and
the unavailability of published metric data for one of the three months of the quarter is not
expected to hinder the ability to provide this useful information. Please also reflect on the
metric performance trend when compared to the quarter from the previous year Please note that the metrics themselves will be referenced (and reported as required) as
per the standard national published datasets.

5. Income and Expenditure

The Better Care Fund 2021-22 pool constitutes mandatory funding sources and any
voluntary additional pooling from LAs (Local Authorities) and CCGs. The mandatory funding
sources are the DFG (Disabled Facilities Grant), the improved Better Care Fund (iBCF)
grant, and the minimum CCG contribution. A large proportion of areas also planned to pool

Income section:

- Please confirm the total HWB level actual BCF pooled income for 2021-22 by reporting
any changes to the planned additional contributions by LAs and CCGs as was reported on
the BCF planning template.
- The template will automatically pre populate the planned expenditure in 2021-22 from
BCF plans, including additional contributions.
- If the amount of additional pooled funding placed intothe area's section 75 agreement is
different to the amount in the plan, you should select 'Yes'. You will then be able to enter a
- Please provide any comments that may be useful for local context for the reported actual

Expenditure section:

- Please select from the drop down box to indicate whether the actual expenditure in you
BCF section 75 is different to the planned amount.
- If you select 'Yes', the boxes to record actual spend, and expanatory comments will
unlock.
- You can then enter the total, HWB level, actual BCF expenditure for 2021-22 in the yellow
- Please provide any comments that may be useful for local context for the reported actual

6. Year End Feedback

This section provides an opportunity to provide feedback on delivering the BCF in 2021-22
through a set of survey questions
The purpose of this survey is to provide an opportunity for local areas to consider the impact
of BCF and to provide the BCF national partners a view on the impact across the country.

Part 1 - Delivery of the Better Care Fund

There are a total of 3 questions in this section. Each is set out as a statement, for which you
are asked to select one of the following responses:
- Strongly Agree
- Agree
- Neither Agree Nor Disagree
- Disagree
- Strongly Disagree
The questions are:
1. The overall delivery of the BCF has improved joint working between health and social
2. Our BCF schemes were implemented as planned in 2021-22
3. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2021-22 had a positive impact on the integration of health

Page 26

Part 2 - Successes and Challenges

This part of the survey utilises the SCIE (Social Care Institue for Excellence) Integration
Logic Model published on this link below to capture two key challenges and successes
Please highlight:
8. Two key successes observed toward driving the enablers for integration (expressed in
9. Two key challenges observed toward driving the enablers for integration (expressed in
For each success and challenge, please select the most relevant enabler from the SCIE
logic model and provide a narrative describing the issues, and how you have made

SCIE - Integrated care Logic Model

1. Local contextual factors (e.g. financial health, funding arrangements, demographics,
2. Strong, system-wide governance and systems leadership
3. Integrated electronic records and sharing across the system with service users
4. Empowering users to have choice and control through an asset based approach, shared
decision making and co-production
5. Integrated workforce: joint approach to training and upskilling of workforce
6. Good quality and sustainable provider market that can meet demand
7. Joined-up regulatory approach
8. Pooled or aligned resources
9. Joint commissioning of health and social care

7. ASC fee rates
This section collects data on average fees paid by the local authority for social care.
Specific guidance on individual questions can be found on the relevant tab.

Page 27

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template
2. Cover
Version 2.0
Please Note:
- The BCF end of year reports are categorised as 'Management Information' and data from them will published in an aggregated form on the NHSE website. Narrative
sections of the reports will not be published. However as with all information collected and stored by public bodies, all BCF information including any narrative is subject
to Freedom of Information requests.
- At a local level it is for the HWB to decide what information it needs to publish as part of wider local government reporting and transparency requirements. Until BCF
information is published, recipients of BCF reporting information (including recipients who access any information placed on the BCE) are prohibited from making this
information available on any public domain or providing this information for the purposes of journalism or research without prior consent from the HWB (where it
concerns a single HWB) or the BCF national partners for the aggregated information.
- All information, including that provided on local authority fee rates, will be supplied to BCF partners to inform policy development.
- This template is password protected to ensure data integrity and accurate aggregation of collected information. A resubmission may be required if this is breached.

Checklist
Complete:

Health and Wellbeing Board:

Hammersmith and Fulham

Yes

Completed by:

Cheryl Anglin-Thompson, Pooja Maniar

Yes

E-mail:

cheryl.anglin-thompson@lbhf.gov.uk, poojamaniar@nhs.net

Yes

Contact number:

07776 672 473

Yes

Has this report been signed off by (or on behalf of) the HWB at the time of
submission?

No, subject to sign-off

If no, please indicate when the report is expected to be signed off:

Wed 29/06/2022

Yes
<< Please enter using the format,
DD/MM/YYYY

Please indicate who is signing off the report for submission on behalf of the HWB (delegated authority is also accepted):
Job Title:
Councillor
Name:
Ben Coleman

Page 28

Yes
Yes
Yes

Question Completion - when all questions have been answered and the validation boxes below have turned green you should send the
template to england.bettercarefundteam@nhs.net saving the file as 'Name HWB' for example 'County Durham HWB'
Complete

2. Cover
3. National Conditions
4. Metrics
5. Income and Expenditure actual
6. Year-End Feedback
7. ASC fee rates

Complete:
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
<< Link to the Guidance sheet
^^ Link back to top

Page 29

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template
3. National Conditions
Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Hammersmith and F

Confirmation of Nation Conditions
National Condition
Confirmation
1) A Plan has been agreed for the Health and Wellbeing Yes
Board area that includes all mandatory funding and this is
included in a pooled fund governed under section 75 of
the NHS Act 2006?
(This should include engagement with district councils on
use of Disabled Facilities Grant in two tier areas)
2) Planned contribution to social care from the CCG
minimum contribution is agreed in line with the BCF
policy?
3) Agreement to invest in NHS commissioned out of
hospital services?
4) Plan for improving outcomes for people being
discharged from hospital

Page 30

Yes

Yes
Yes

Fulham

If the answer is "No" please provide an explanation as to why the condition was not met in 202122:
Section 75 for 2021/22 signed off on 31st March 2022.
CCG Signatory: Jo Ohlson, Accountable Officer, NWL CCG
LBHF Signatory: Lisa Redfern, Strategic Director of Social Care, LBHF

Page 31

Checklist
Complete:

Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes

Page 32

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template
4. Metrics
Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Hammersmith and Fulham

National data may like be unavailable at the time of reporting. As such, please utilise data tha
Challenges and
Support Needs
Achievements

Please describe any challenges faced in meeting the planned target, and p

Metric

Definition

Avoidable
admissions

Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic
ambulatory care sensitive conditions
(NHS Outcome Framework indicator
2.3i)

Length of Stay

14 days or 14 days or 21 days or
Proportion of inpatients resident for:
more
more
more
i) 14 days or more
(Q3)
(Q4)
(Q3)
ii) 21 days or more
10.0%
11.2%
5.3%

Discharge to
normal place of
residence

Percentage of people who are
discharged from acute hospital to
their normal place of residence

Res Admissions*

Rate of permanent admissions to
residential care per 100,000
population (65+)

Reablement

Proportion of older people (65 and
over) who were still at home 91 days
after discharge from hospital into
reablement / rehabilitation services

Please describe any achievements, impact observed or lessons learnt whe
For information - Your planned pe
as reported in 2021-2

* In the absense of 2021-22 population estimates (due to the devolution of North Northampt

Page 33

at may only be available system-wide and other local intelligence.
please highlight any support that may facilitate or ease the achievements of metric plans
en considering improvements being pursued for the respective metrics
erformance Assessment of progress
22 planning against the metric plan for
the reporting period
Data not available to assess
progress
385.0

Challenges and any Support Needs

• Workforce shortages due to vacancies and
sickness has presented a significant challenge
in both the primary identification and
treatment of chronic ambulatory care
sensitive conditions

21 days or Not on track to meet target Length of stay has been impacted by:
• reduced ability to discharge to designated
more
settings (due to closures of care homes, lack
(Q4)
of social care capacity, specialist and
community care capacity)
5.6%
On track to meet target

Achievement to Feb is slightly below target
at 94.7% and has been impacted by:
• periodic closures in care and residential
settings due to covid outbreaks
• Lack of consistency in admission and re-

On track to meet target

EOY out turn is 488.2 (101 people)

On track to meet target

EOY out turn is 94.1% Oct-Dec 21

94.9%

576

92.7%

tonshire and West Northamptonshire), the denominator for the Residential Admissions m

Page 34

s

Achievements

Checklist
Complete:

• A programme of work is in place to
improve discharge to improve the flow out
of acute hospitals to support planned and
unplanned recovery
• Community teams have managed

Yes

• NW London ICS performs above average
compared to other areas in London.
• After challenges in January there have
been some gradual improvements in Feb and
March - with all Trust discharge teams

Yes

• Programme of work in place around
discharge, led my local authority DASS as
SRO
• Better joint working between local
authorities and NHS

Yes

The rate of permanent admissions in to
residential care per 100,000 is likely to be in
line with, or below the target; contributory
factors incl:
•Therapy led intermediate support service

Yes

On track to exceed target , although it is
anticipated that the % may drop as we
embed the new intake, intermediate support
service which will provide , assessment,
therapy and nursing support for all new

Yes

metric is based on 2020-21 estimates

Page 35

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template
6. Year-End Feedback
The purpose of this survey is to provide an opportunity for local areas to consider and give feedback on the impact of the BCF. Covid-19 had a significant impact on services and schemes delivered on the ground which may have
changed the context. However, national BCF partners would value and appreciate local area feedback to understand views and reflections of the progress and challenges faced during 2021-22
There is a total of 5 questions. These are set out below.
Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Hammersmith and Fulham

Part 1: Delivery of the Better Care Fund

Please use the below form to indicate to what extent you agree with the following statements and then detail any further supporting information in the corresponding comment boxes.
Statement:

Response:

1. The overall delivery of the BCF has improved joint working
between health and social care in our locality

Strongly Agree

2. Our BCF schemes were implemented as planned in 2021-22

Strongly Agree

3. The delivery of our BCF plan in 2021-22 had a positive impact
on the integration of health and social care in our locality

Agree

Comments: Please detail any further supporting information for each response
In H&F we value our joint working, and have continued to deliver the BCF schemes to
support our joint aims, and improve outcomes for our residents. Our integrated hospital
team, MH teams, LD and reablement has been successfully delivering integrated services;
commissioning team has supported this by ensuring services are availabe to meet demand.
All schemes were commissioned and delivered as per plan. Due to the pandemic some of
our planned investments were tweaked to ensure the pressues in the system were
managed well. Investment in reablement were increased to meet the demand throughout
the pandemic. Additional support to care homes were provided.
It is fair to say that governance, managment and delivery of the BCF schemes over the last 3
years has been challenging. This is because of the changing NHS structures, disapperance of
local CCGs, decisions being made at a North West London level, and of course the
pandemic. However despite all of these challenges in H&F we have worked collaboratively

Checklist
Complete:
Yes

Yes

Yes

Part 2: Successes and Challenges

Please select two Enablers from the SCIE Logic model which you have observed demonstrable success in progressing and two Enablers which you have experienced a relatively greater degree of
challenge in progressing.
Please provide a brief description alongside.
4. Outline two key successes observed toward driving the
enablers for integration (expressed in SCIE's logical model) in
2021-22

Page 36

Success 1

Success 2

5. Outline two key challenges observed toward driving the
enablers for integration (expressed in SCIE's logical model) in
2021-22

Challenge 1

Challenge 2

SCIE Logic Model Enablers, Response
category:
Response - Please detail your greatest successes
Timely and safe discharge of patients is one of our successes in H&F. Despite the pressures on hospital beds, and increase
in attendance in A&E we delivered excellent discharge outcomes by managing timely discharges, and avoiding unnecessary
2. Strong, system-wide governance
delays. Our integrated discharge service has formed the foundation of H&F Integrated discharge hub.
and systems leadership

5. Integrated workforce: joint
approach to training and upskilling
of workforce

Our outstanding reablement team has been an invaluable resource in managing timely & safe discharges and helping
people remain at home throughout the pandemic. Reablement has worked as a fully integrated pathway in Community
Independence Service (CIS), being jointly trained with NHS staff on infection control, PPE usage and delivering safe care
throughout.

SCIE Logic Model Enablers, Response
category:
Response - Please detail your greatest challenges
One of our challenges has been the provision of sustainable continuous equipment service. In pockets its been good and
responded to demand and at times we had challenges in supply and timely deliveries. We are part of a massive Framework,
this has wide benefits however due to pandemic and increased demand it meant that the Framework had challenges
8. Pooled or aligned resources
delivering agreed outcomes.

2. Strong, system-wide governance
and systems leadership

This will be similar to many other areas; our BBP is forming as we speak, and the the NHS landscape is signficantly
changing. BCF is overseen by the HWB, for our NHS partners, the tension between having local (H&F) decision making vs
NWL, and the role of LA within this still not fully resolved. This at times has its challenges especially when we expect
timely, H&F specific decisions around the investments and changes to the schemes.

Footnotes:
Question 4 and 5 are should be assigned to one of the following categories:
1. Local contextual factors (e.g. financial health, funding arrangements, demographics, urban vs rural factors)
2. Strong, system-wide governance and systems leadership
3. Integrated electronic records and sharing across the system with service users
4. Empowering users to have choice and control through an asset based approach, shared decision making and co-production
5. Integrated workforce: joint approach to training and upskilling of workforce
6. Good quality and sustainable provider market that can meet demand
7. Joined-up regulatory approach
8. Pooled or aligned resources
9. Joint commissioning of health and social care
Other

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template
7. ASC fee rates
Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Hammersmith and Fulham

The iBCF fee rate collection gives us better and more timely insight into the fee rates paid to external care providers, which is a key part of social care reform.
Given the introduction of the Market Sustainability and Fair Cost of Care Fund in 2022-23, we are exploring where best to collect this data in future, but have chosen to collect 2021-22 data through the iBCF for consistency
with previous years.

These questions cover average fees paid by your local authority (gross of client contributions/user charges) to external care providers for your local authority's eligible clients. The averages will likely
need to be calculated from records of payments paid to social care providers and the number of client weeks they relate to, unless you already have suitable management information.
We are interested ONLY in the average fees actually received by external care providers for your local authority's eligible supported clients (gross of client contributions/user charges), reflecting what

your local authority is able to afford.

In 2020-21, areas were asked to provide actual average rates (excluding whole market support such as the Infection Control Fund but otherwise, including additional funding to cover cost pressures related to management
of the COVID-19 pandemic), as well as a ‘counterfactual’ rate that would have been paid had the pandemic not occurred. This counterfactual calculation was intended to provide data on the long term costs of providing
care to inform policymaking. In 2021-22, areas are only asked to provide the actual rate paid to providers (not the counterfactual), subject to than the exclusions set out below.

Page 37

Specifically the averages SHOULD therefore:
- EXCLUDE/BE NET OF any amounts that you usually include in reported fee rates but are not paid to care providers e.g. your local authority's own staff costs in managing the commissioning of places.
- EXCLUDE/BE NET OF any amounts that are paid from sources other than eligible local authority funding and client contributions/user charges, i.e. you should EXCLUDE third party top-ups, NHS Funded
Nursing Care and full cost paying clients.
- EXCLUDE/BE NET OF whole-market COVID-19 support such as Infection Control Fund payments.
- INCLUDE/BE GROSS OF client contributions /user charges.
- INCLUDE fees paid under spot and block contracts, fees paid under a dynamic purchasing system, payments for travel time in home care, any allowances for external provider staff training, fees directly
commissioned by your local authority and fees commissioned by your local authority as part of a Managed Personal Budget.
- EXCLUDE care packages which are part funded by Continuing Health Care funding.
If you only have average fees at a more detailed breakdown level than the three service types of home care, 65+ residential and 65+ nursing requested below (e.g. you have the more detailed categories
of 65+ residential without dementia, 65+ residential with dementia) please calculate for each of the three service types an average weighted by the proportion of clients that receive each detailed
category: 1. Take the number of clients receiving the service for each detailed category.
2. Divide the number of clients receiving the service for each detailed category (e.g. age 65+ residential without dementia, age 65+ residential with dementia) by the total number of clients receiving the
relevant service (e.g. age 65+ residential).
3. Multiply the resultant proportions from Step 2 by the corresponding fee paid for each detailed category.
4. For each service type, sum the resultant detailed category figures from Step 3.
Please leave any missing data cells as blank e.g. do not attempt to enter '0' or 'N/A'.

Checklist

1. Please provide the average amount that you paid to external
providers for home care, calculated on a consistent basis.
(£ per contact hour, following the exclusions as in the
instructions above)

For information - your 202021 fee as reported in 2020-21
end of year reporting *
£17.68

Average 2020/21 fee. If you
have newer/better data than
End of year 2020/21, enter it
below and explain why it
differs in the comments. What was your actual average Implied Uplift: Actual 2021/22
Otherwise enter the end of
fee rate per actual user for
rates compared to 2020/21
year 2020-21 value
2021/22?
rates
£17.68
£17.86
1.0%

Complete:
Yes

Page 38

2. Please provide the average amount that you paid for external
provider care homes without nursing for clients aged 65+,
calculated on a consistent basis.
(£ per client per week, following the exclusions as in the
instructions above)

£809.46

£753.04

£798.74

6.1%

Yes

3. Please provide the average amount that you paid for external
provider care homes with nursing for clients aged 65+,
calculated on a consistent basis.
(£ per client per week, following the exclusions in the instructions
above)

£767.47

£767.47

£787.82

2.7%

Yes

The 20-21 residential figures was overstated as it included average fee rates for CCG led CHC
placements. This has now been corrected.

Yes

4. Please provide additional commentary if your 2020-21 fee is
different from that reported in your 2020-21 end of year report.
Please do not use more than 250 characters.

116 characters remaining
Footnotes:
* ".." in the column C lookup means that no 2020-21 fee was reported by your council in the 2020-21 EoY report

** For column F, please calculate your fee rate as the expenditure during the year divided by the number of actual client weeks during the year. This will
pick up any support that you have provided in terms of occupancy guarantees.
(Occupancy guarantees should result in a higher rate per actual user.)

*** Both North Northamptonshire & West Northamptonshire will pull the same last year figures as reported by the former Northamptonshire
County Council.

Better Care Fund 2021-22 Year-end Template
5. Income and Expenditure actual
Selected Health and Wellbeing Board:

Hammersmith and Fulham

Income
2021-22

Disabled Facilities Grant
Improved Better Care Fund
CCG Minimum Fund
Minimum Sub Total

£1,495,597
£9,732,406
£15,374,300

CCG Additional Funding

£16,813,965

LA Additional Funding
Additional Sub Total

Total BCF Pooled Fund

£26,602,303
Planned

Actual
Do you wish to change your
additional actual CCG funding?
Do you wish to change your
additional actual LA funding?

£6,920,412
£23,734,377
Planned 21-22
£50,336,680

Page 39

Please provide any comments that may be
useful for local context where there is a
difference between planned and actual
income for 2021-22

Checklist
Complete:

Yes

£16,884,965

Yes

No

Yes
£23,805,377

Actual 21-22
£50,407,680
The CCG were billed an additional £71k following the end of quarter 3 for an anticipated over
performance in activity against the S75 in this amount, this should be treated as a non-recurrent
adjsutment for 22/23.

Yes

Expenditure
Plan

2021-22
£50,336,680

Do you wish to change your actual BCF expenditure?
Actual

Yes

£50,826,640

Please provide any comments that may be
useful for local context where there is a
difference between the planned and actual
expenditure for 2021-22

Yes
Yes

Actual expenditure by the CCG is £32.6m, which shows an over performance of £0.226m compared to
the planned CCG expenditure. This over performance is largely due to increase in costs for Continuing
Care placements and Community Equipment.
Actual expenditure by the LA is £18.3m, which shows an over performance of £0.2m compare to the

Yes

